
NOTICE OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

The City Council of the City of King City will hold a Regular City Council Meeting at 7:00 p.m., 
Wednesday-June 6, 2018 at the King City Hall, 15300 SW 116th Ave, King City, Oregon 97224  

 

AGENDA 
Action Item 

 

***REGULAR SESSION*** 

Moment of Silence 

7:00 p.m.    1.  CALL TO ORDER 

     2.  ROLL CALL 

     3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

     4.     APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  None at this time. 

 7:05 p.m.     5.     OPEN FORUM: We welcome public comment. At this time, the 
Council will be happy to receive your comment pertaining to items on 
the agenda (including, questions, suggestions, complaints and items 
for future agendas). Each person’s time will be limited to three 
minutes. 

7:15 p.m.     6.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS:   

6.1     Pride Rate Amendments 

7:25 p.m.     7.   NEW BUSINESS:  

                      7.1     Brown & Brown Insurance Proposal (Hand-Out) Geoff Sinclair 
  7.2     April Financials 

                      7.3     R-2018-08 Resolution Adopting 2018/19 FY Budget 
  7.4     R-2018-09 Resolution Electing to Receive State Funds 
  7.5     R-2018-09 Resolution Declaring Services 
  7.6     Authorize Union Agreement 2018-2020                  

7:45 p.m.     8.  POLICE CHIEF’S REPORT  

7:50 p.m.     9.  CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

7:55 p.m.     10.  MAYOR’S AND COUNCILOR’S REPORTS 

8:25 p.m.     11.  ADJOURN  

 

NEXT MEETING SCHEDULED FOR JUNE 16, 2018 @ 7:00 PM 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an 
interpreter for the hearing impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with 

disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to Mike 
Weston, City Recorder, 503-639-4082. 

 
M=Motion;  S=Second;  A=Action/Vote 

 
 
 

Time: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M     S     A 

 
 
No Action Req 

M     S     A 

M     S     A 

M     S     A 

M     S     A 

M     S     A 

 
 
 
 
 

Time: 
 
 

 



MEMORANDUM 

To:  King City - City Council 

From:  Michael Weston, City Manager  

Subject:  Pride Rate Increase 

Date:  May 31, 2018 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
In recent months the costs for Solid Waste and Recycling have increased substantially. Recycling 

being the major contributor due to new standards regarding the acceptable material. Based on 

the data I have been able to review the request from Pride is in line with maintaining existing 

service levels. Although I am not a proponent of increased costs I cannot argue with the 

indicators that show a substantial increase in recycling costs. The profit margins for King City are 

slim, any modifications in the market could cause disruptions to Pride’s Bottom line and there 

service capabilities.   

CRITERIA 
 Franchise Agreement – Between the two Parties 

AGENCY COMMENTS 
Pride has requested authorization for a rate increase and subsequent modification to include a CPI 

adjustment inclusion in the current franchise agreement.  

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 
The Council can choose to grant the increase to maintain existing service levels, or deny the increase 

which will result in decreased services. After investigation into the 2017 financial report and 

current market rates for recycling rates Staff believes that the request from Pride Disposal is 

warranted given the current Market Rates. The CPI adjustment is a relatively common practice 

in government agencies, but also creates a Financial Bell Curve which may ultimately become 

unstable for users. Rarely have I seen CPI decrease, but it is typically used as an industry 

standard and is usually a good measuring tool to maintain market rate services.    

RECOMMENDATION 
Based on the findings and concerns brought up by Pride I would recommend going with Option 1 

presented by Pride, this seems to evenly distribute the burden across all sectors, and resolves 

the operating deficiencies projected with the increased rates for recycling collection. In regards 

to the Automatic CPI adjustment, Staff finds that there is inherent risk with automatic CPI 

adjustments; however, as long as they are allowed to rise and fall with market rates, then the 

tool could be used successfully.    

ATTACHMENTS 
 Pride Request  

 Franchise Agreement 

 2017 Financial Summary Report 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

P.O. Box 820 Sherwood, OR 97140  

Phone: (503) 625-6177   Fax: (503) 625-6179 

 

May 22, 2018 

 

Mike Weston, City Manager 

City of King City 

15300 SW 116th Avenue 

King City, OR 97224 

 

Dear Mr. Weston and King City Council: 

 

Thank you for your consideration at the King City Council meeting on May 16th. Pride Disposal is requesting a rate 

increase effective July 1, 2018 to continue providing quality services specified under our franchise agreement with 

the City of King City. The city’s last rate increase was effective June 1, 2017. We are also requesting modifications 

to the King City code, which would provide language to utilize a CPI index for future rate increases. This is an 

attempt to provide for small rate increases each year, which would keep up with the cost of living, rather than 

potentially have intermittent larger increases.  This would also mean that the new rates, if approved for a July 1st 

effective date, would not change for 18 months. 

 

We wanted to provide some clarification surrounding some questions that came up at the May 16th council 

meeting. Pride Disposal turns in an annual financial report to King City on March 15th each year. This report details 

Pride’s costs and revenues that are part of servicing King City as well as our total company report. This report 

provides salary caps for related parties who may work for Pride Disposal. This report is provided so King City can 

review our financial data related to services provided in King City and ensure our company is operating efficiently 

and in the best interest of King City customers. 

 

Since June 2017, several factors have impacted Pride. Our company has very little ability to control the following 

types of operating cost increases. 

 Commingle recycling value drop nearly $100/ton 

 Inflation increased 3.9%  

 Insurance rates increased over 8% 

 

Our company took the following actions to offset increases in other operating costs. These actions help us to 

maintain our high standard of service that King City has come to expect and deserve. 

 Stringent maintenance programs that ensure the longevity of our trucks 

 Continued investment in Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) equipment; fuel pricing is lower and more stable 

without relying on foreign oil markets 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 Maximize commodity pricing with our recycle partners 

 Continuous review and adjustments of routes to maximize efficiency 

 

The most significant negative impact has been the change in value of commingle recycle material. As of January 

2018, China is no longer allowing the importation of post-consumer plastics and unsorted paper, in response to 

poor quality of material shipped from the U.S. and Europe; pollution caused by poor recycling practices and small-

scale operations, and the need for China to develop its own domestic recovery system for recyclable materials. 

There are not enough domestic markets for the materials in the US. Most of the domestic markets in the US are 

on the east coast and they do not have the capacity to process all of the material in the US. The processors in 

Oregon where Pride (and other haulers) take their recyclables are the ones who ship the recyclables after they’ve 

sorted them, so they are no longer mixed together. Those facilities are trying to improve the quality of the 

material by slowing down their sorting lines so they can remove more contaminants and do a cleaner sort. This 

means higher sorting costs as well as material backing up, and because there is a lot of recycling done in Oregon, 

the incoming material to these facilities is not slowing down. China has stopped purchasing this material, so the 

market price has plummeted.  

 

The crash of the recycling market has been felt across Oregon, the United States, and around the world. China 

was buying approximately 60% of the world’s recycling; this is a global issue. Cities and Counties across Oregon 

have implemented emergency rate increases to help offset the change. The DEQ, Metro, and other government 

officials continue to meet to work through this situation with the consensus that the market will continue to drop. 

 

Pride is requesting council approval of one of the following proposals. Regardless of which proposal is chosen, we 

will include information for residents explaining how to make their service as cost effective as possible. Based on 

Council feedback, we made changes to proposals 1 and 2 below, providing for a smaller increase for customers 

who generate less waste (20-gallon and 32-gallon customers) and a larger increase for customers who generate 

more waste (60-gallon and 90-gallon customers).  

 

Proposal 1: Increase across all lines of business, residential, commercial, drop box 

 10% increase on all Commercial rates 

 10% increase on all Dropbox rates 

 Varied Residential increase allocated to support smaller cart sizes 

o $0.95 increase for 20-gallon carts 

o $1.15 increase for 32-gallon carts 

o $2.05 increase for 60-gallon carts 

o $2.45 increase for 90-gallon carts  

 This option spreads the cost across businesses as well as residents 

 

Proposal 2: Increase for all residential customers (no increase for commercial or drop box). 

 $1.50 increase for residential 20-gallon carts 

 $1.65 increase for residential 32-gallon carts 

 $3.25 increase for residential 60-gallon carts 

 $4.25 increase for residential 90-gallon carts 

 Varied Residential increase allocated to support smaller cart sizes 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Proposal 3: $2.00/month increase for all residential customers. 

 This represents an 8% increase for residential 32-gallon carts (60% of King City residents) 

 Equal dollar increase for all cart sizes 

 

It is a pleasure to be of service to the citizens of King City. Thank you for this opportunity. 

 

Respectfully, 

 

Kristin Leichner 

Pride Disposal Co. 



































 
 

P.O. Box 820 Sherwood, OR 97140  
Phone: (503) 625-6177   Fax: (503) 625-6179 

 
May 8, 2018 
 
Mike Weston, City Manager 
City of King City 
15300 SW 116th Ave 
King City, OR 97224 
 
Re: Request for code changes regarding solid waste rates 
 
We are proposing modifications to sections 8.16 and 8.20 of the King City Municipal Code, related to 
solid waste. This proposed change would implement an annual cost of living index, similar to code 
language that exists in both City of Tigard and City of Sherwood. These proposed changes would provide 
transparency regarding rate setting. The changes would also provide annual incremental rate changes, if 
necessary, rather than infrequent and larger rate increases. 
 
There are a few other proposed changes to the code language, which are minor housekeeping changes 
to modify the code to match current practices. 
 
The proposed changes are attached to this letter. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Kristin Leichner 
Pride Disposal 
 



1 
 

Chapter 8.16 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL 
 
Sections:  

8.16.010 Purpose of chapter. 
8.16.020 Definitions. 
8.16.030 Franchise required for collection. 
8.16.040 Collection equipment requirements. 
8.16.050 Disposal sites. 
8.16.060 Collection schedules. 
8.16.080 Collector—Seasonal pickups. 
8.16.090 Collection rates. 
8.16.100 Insurance or bond in lieu of fee. 
8.16.110 Collection area—Containers. 
8.16.120 Ownership of solid waste. 
8.16.130 Collector—Recycling. 
8.16.140 Council duties—Contracts. 
8.16.150 Council—Additional duties. 
8.16.160 Violation—Penalty. 
8.16.170 Franchise fee. 

 
8.16.010 Purpose of chapter. 

The council finds that it is a governmental obligation to provide for the safe, efficient and 
dependable collection and removal of solid waste within the city to protect the health, peace and safety 
of the inhabitants of the city from disease and reduction in property values that could occur from 
accumulated unremoved solid waste. The council further finds that it is a proper and necessary exercise 
of its police powers to adopt and enforce a solid waste management program to: 

A. Insure safe accumulation, storage, collection, transportation, disposal or resource recovery of 
solid waste; 

B. Insure maintenance of a financially stable, reliable solid waste collection and disposal service; 
C. Insure rates that are just, fair, reasonable and adequate to provide necessary service to the 

public; 
D. Prohibit rate preference and other discriminatory practices which benefit one user at the 

expense of other users of the service or the general public; 
E. Conserve energy and material resources; 
F. Eliminate overlapping service to reduce truck traffic, street wear, air pollution and noise; 
G. Provide standards for solid waste service and public responsibilities; and 
H. Provide to each resident and inhabitant the opportunity to recycle recyclable materials 

generated within the city. (Ord. O-89-3 § 1, 1988) 
 
8.16.020 Definitions. 

For purposes of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply: 
“Collector” means the franchisee under this chapter. 
“Compensation” means and includes: 
1. Any type of consideration paid for services including, without limitation, rent, lease payments, 

and any other direct or indirect provision for the payment of money, goods, services or benefits by 
owners, tenants, lessees, occupants or similar persons; 

2. The exchange of services between persons; and 



2 
 

3. The flow of consideration from the person owning or possessing the solid waste to the person 
providing the service or from the person providing the service to the person owning or possessing the 
solid waste. 

“Council” means the city council of the city. 
“Franchise” means the right to provide service granted to a person pursuant to this chapter.  
“Person” means any individual, partnership, association, corporation, trust, firm, estate, joint 

venture, or other public or private legal entity. 
“Putrescible material” means organic materials that can decompose and may give rise to foul 

smelling, offensive odors or products. 
“Recyclable materials” mean solid waste that can be recycled or reused. 
“Recycling” means any process by which solid waste materials are transformed into new 

products in such a manner that the original products lose their identity. 
“Resource recovery” means the process of obtaining useful material or energy resources from 

solid waste and including energy recover, materials recovery, recycling and reuse of or from solid waste.  
“Reuse” means the return of a commodity into the economic stream for use in the same kind of 

application as before without a change in its identity. 
“Service” means the collection, storage, transportation, transfer or disposal of, or resource 

recovery from, solid waste. 
“Solid waste” means all wastes, in solid or liquid form, including but not limited to, garbage, 

rubbish, ashes, street refuse, waste paper, corrugated and cardboard, commercial, industrial, demolition 
and construction wastes, swill, discarded vehicle parts, discarded home and industrial appliances, 
vegetable or animal solid and semisolid wastes, small dead animals, and other wastes. It does not 
include sewage, sewage sludge, or sewage hauled as an incidental part of a septic tank or cesspool 
cleaning service. 

“Waste” means material that is no longer wanted by or usable by the source generator or 
producer of the material and which material is to be disposed of or to be resource recovered by another 
person, and includes both source separated material and nonsource separated material. (Ord. O-89-3 § 
2, 1988) 
 
8.16.030 Franchise required for collection. 

Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, it is unlawful for any person to provide service, 
offer to provide service or advertise for the performance of service or to collect solid waste or recyclable 
materials in the city without having obtained a franchise from the city. Nothing in this chapter is to be 
construed to prevent any resident or household of the city from hauling his or her own solid waste or 
refuse and disposing of the same in a lawful manner; provided, however, that no resident or 
householder shall be permitted to haul solid waste for another person. (Ord. O-89-3 § 3, 1988) 
 
8.16.040 Collection equipment requirements. 

The collector shall use proper and suitable equipment for the hauling and transportation of solid 
waste. All equipment for handling solid waste, ashes, and rubbish shall be covered and all equipment for 
handling liquids shall be equipped with a metal body, watertight and drip-proof. All equipment shall be 
kept clean at all times. Sufficient equipment shall be kept on hand to promptly and adequately remove 
all solid waste subject to the terms of this chapter. Employees of the collector shall be attired in neat 
and proper uniforms. (Ord. O-89-3 § 4, 1988) 
 
8.16.050 Disposal sites. 

The collector shall secure, at his own expense, an approved location for the disposal of solid 
waste collected from the city, and the collector shall conform to all rules, regulations and requirements 



3 
 

of any public authority or agency having jurisdiction over any such disposal site or sites. (Ord. O-89-3 § 5, 
1988) 
 
8.16.060 Collection schedules. 

The collector shall provide collections of solid waste at least weekly in all residential districts of 
the city. The collector may provide collection services on legal holidays and Sundays, however, Sunday 
service shall be limited to emergency pickup of a commercial account in response to a request made by 
a commercial customer. No residential collection shall be made before 6am or after 7pm. The collector 
shall perform his obligations under this chapter under the supervision and to the satisfaction of the city 
manager in compliance with all sanitary regulations of the city and of the state. (Ord. O-89-3 § 6, 1988) 
 
8.16.080 Collector—Yard Debris service. 

The collector shall provide an optional every other week yard debris collection service in all 
residential districts of the city including providing a yard debris cart to each customer who chooses yard 
debris service to place on the curb on collection day. The rates for this service shall be established 
pursuant to Section 8.16.090 of this chapter. (Ord. O-05-06 § 1, 2005: Ord. O-89-3 § 8, 1988) 
 
8.16.090 Collection rates. 

A. The rates to be charged to all persons, firms or corporations by the collector shall be 
reasonable and uniform, taking into consideration the service rendered, and shall be in substantial 
compliance with and not in excess of those rates adopted by resolution of the council. 

B. The collector shall provide pro rata billing to those customers requesting temporary 
suspension of service. The collector shall suspend service when notified via a telephone call or a written 
request no less than ten days before the designated pickup date on which suspension is to begin. The 
suspension of service must be for a period of time involving no less than two successive pickup dates. 
Notice requesting suspension of service must include the date on which service is to be resumed. 

C. Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit, modify or preclude the right on the part of 
the city to amend this chapter to regulate or provide other or different rates or prescribe additional 
classifications and charges, provided that rate changes or classifications shall not become effective 
except thirty days after enactment and shall be reasonable in consideration of service required to be 
rendered by the collector to the public. 

D. Unless a governmental unit or legislative body has raised or lowered the cost of providing 
service or there is a substantial increase in the cost of doing business that was not provided for in the 
previous rate adjustment, rate adjustments shall be made annually on the following schedule: 

1. On or before March 15th, the collector shall file an annual report with the city manager for the 
year ended the previous December 31st. 

2. The city manager shall report to the council by April 15th on the franchise reports and propose 
rate adjustments, if any. The city manager may make such recommendations as appropriate to the rate 
determination. A copy shall be delivered to the collector. 

3. Unless there is good cause shown and recorded in the minutes of the council, if a rate 
adjustment is proposed, the council shall set a hearing on the proposed rate adjustment within sixty 
days of receiving the report from the city manager and shall either approve or disapprove the proposed 
rate adjustment within thirty days of said hearing. 

4. The rate adjustment proposed by the city manager under subsection 2 above shall be based 
on the following: 

a. if the rate of return of the collector is less than eight percent or more than twelve 
percent, then the city will undertake a rate study to recommend new rates. The study will be 
designed to recommend new rates that will be effective on the immediately following January 1 



4 
 

and intended to produce a rate of return of ten percent for the calendar year beginning on that 
date. The study will also determine the expected rate of return for the collector during the 
current calendar year, and that information shall be reported to the collector. So long as the 
actual rate of return for that calendar year is within two percent more or less than the reported 
rate of return, no rate study will be needed based on that calendar year’s report. 

b. If the rate of the return for the collector is between eight and twelve percent, the 
proposed rate adjustment will be effective on the immediately following January 1 and will be 
indexed to the US Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics CPI-U Over-the-Year Percent 
Change Annual Average for Portland-Salem (the “index”). If the rate of return is between eight 
to nine percent, then the proposed rate adjustment will be 1.25 times the index. If the rate of 
return is between nine to eleven percent, then the proposed rate adjustment will be equal to 
the index. If the rate of return is between eleven to twelve percent, then the proposed rate 
adjustment will be .75 times the index. 
5. Cost of services studies will be conducted at a minimum of every six years. (Ord. O-05-06 § 2, 

2005; Ord. O-95-4 § 1, 1995; Ord. O-89-3 § 9, 1988) 
 
8.16.100 Insurance or bond in lieu of fee. 

A. The collector shall pay, save harmless and indemnify the city from any loss, damages, costs, 
penalties, expenses, liabilities, or charges of any kind arising out of or related to the city’s enforcement 
or defense of proceedings relating to the privileges and obligations granted by this chapter. If an action 
shall be filed against the city, either independently or jointly with the collector, to recover for any claim 
or jointly with the collector, to recover for any claim or damages relating to the privileges and 
obligations granted by this chapter, the collector upon notice to it by the city shall defend the city 
against the action and in the event of a final judgment being obtained against the city, either 
independently or jointly with the collector, the collector will pay the judgment and all costs and 
reasonable attorney fees and hold the city harmless therefrom. 

B. The collector shall, concurrently with his acceptance of the franchise, file with the city 
recorder and at all times thereafter maintain in full force and effect for the term of the franchise or any 
renewal thereof, at the collector’s sole expense, a corporate surety bond with a responsible company 
licensed to do business in the state in the amount of ten thousand dollars guaranteeing full and faithful 
performance by the collector under this chapter. The bond shall be subject to the review and approval 
of the city attorney. The collector shall annually furnish proof to the city recorder that the bond remains 
in effect. 

C. The collector shall maintain insurance in such forms and with such companies as shall be 
approved by the city attorney, which shall cover the collector’s business operation, including each 
vehicle operated by the collector. The insurance coverage shall include not less than one hundred 
thousand dollars for one person nor less than three hundred thousand dollars for bodily injury due to 
each occurrence and not less than three hundred thousand dollars for damage to property due to each 
occurrence. 

D. All such insurance coverage shall provide a thirty-day notice to the city recorder in the event 
of material alteration or cancellation of any coverage afforded in the policies prior to the date the 
material alteration or cancellation shall become effective. Copies of all policies required under this 
section shall be furnished to and filed with the city recorder not more than thirty days after the effective 
date of the franchise granted by this chapter. The provisions of this section, any bonds accepted to the 
city pursuant thereto and any damage recovered by the city under this chapter shall not be construed to 
excuse unfaithful performance by the collector or limit the liability of the collector under this chapter or 
the collector for damages, either to the full amount of the bond, or otherwise. (Ord. O-91-9 § 1 (part), 
1991; Ord. O-91- 7 § 1, 1991; Ord. O-89-3 § 10, 1988) 



5 
 

 
8.16.110 Collection area—Containers. 

All solid waste collection and disposal shall be performed by the collector for properties located 
within the city unless otherwise provided by this chapter. The owner, contract purchaser, or person in 
control of any residential structure offered to others for rent, lease or occupation within the city shall 
provide through the collector for the collection and disposal of solid waste from any such structure. 
Collector will provide all equipment for customers. (Ord. O-93-3 § 1, 1993: Ord. 166-93.8.16 § 1, 1992: 
Ord. O-90-23 § 1, 1990; Ord. O-89-3 § 11, 1988) 
 
8.16.120 Ownership of solid waste. 

All solid waste located, placed or deposited in a cart, container, or drop box  placed out by a 
customer for collection by the collector shall belong to the collector. It is unlawful for any person other 
than the collector to remove any solid waste from such receptacles. Any person removing such materials 
in violation of this section shall be subject to the penalties defined in Section 8.16.160 of this chapter. 
(Ord. O-89-3 § 12, 1988) 
 
8.16.130 Collector—Recycling. 

The collector shall provide on-route recycling subject to the following provisions: 
A. The collector shall collect at least every other week source separated recyclable materials. 

The collector shall give notice to each person of the opportunity to recycle, encouraging source 
separation of recyclable materials. 

B. In the event the council wishes to establish, modify or enlarge the collector’s recycling 
program, the collector shall be given not less than thirty days notice of a hearing before the council on 
the matter and be given an opportunity to be heard and participate in the hearing. 

C. If, after the hearing and on the basis of written findings, the council directs recycling be 
provided, modified or enlarged, the collector shall be given a reasonable opportunity to provide 
recycling or subcontract with other persons to provide it. 

D. Nothing in this section shall prevent the collector from modifying or expanding on-route 
recycling prior to a council hearing and determination. 

E. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a nonprofit, charitable, benevolent or civic organization 
from recycling materials which have not been set out for collection by the collector. (Ord. O-89-3 § 13, 
1988) 
 
8.16.140 Council duties—Contracts. 

A. The council may suspend, modify, revoke or terminate the franchise granted under the 
provisions of this chapter after written notice and hearing upon finding that the collector has: 

1. Willfully violated this chapter or ORS Chapter 459 or the rules and regulations promulgated 
thereunder; or 

2. Willfully refused to provide adequate service after written notice and a reasonable 
opportunity to do so. 

B. In any case where the city manager finds a serious danger to public health or safety, the city 
manager may suspend the franchise without a hearing but shall notify the collector of the reasons for 
the action and afford the collector the opportunity for a hearing before the council within fourteen days 
from the date of the suspension. In lieu of immediate suspension, modification or revocation of the 
franchise, the council may order compliance and make suspension, modification or revocation 
contingent upon compliance with the order within the time stated in the order. 

C. The collector agrees as a condition of the franchise that whenever the city manager finds that 
the failure of service, threatened failure of service, or the need for a suspension of the franchise would 



6 
 

result in creation or continuation of an immediate and serious health hazard or serious public nuisance, 
the council may, after a minimum of twenty-four hours actual notice to the collector and a public 
hearing if the collector requests it, provide or otherwise authorize another person to provide 
temporarily the service or provide emergency service. (Ord. O-89-3 § 14, 1988) 
 
8.16.150 Council—Additional duties. 

In addition to all other authority granted to or inherent in the council, the council may issue 
temporary restraining orders enjoining the alleged violation of any of the provisions of the franchise, 
this chapter or rules and regulations issued pursuant thereto which order shall direct the alleged violator 
to immediately cease and desist from an act or acts described in the order until the council determines 
whether or not a violation has occurred. Before issuing a temporary restraining order, the council must 
have reasonable grounds to believe that a violation has occurred. In no event shall the council make and 
issue such an order without first receiving a sworn affidavit containing allegations of the violation, which 
affidavit shall specify the alleged violation in short and concise language sufficient to apprise the alleged 
violator of the act or acts to be enjoined. The order shall direct the alleged violator to appear at the time 
and place stated in the order and show cause, if any, why the alleged violator should not be immediately 
enjoined from doing the act or acts specified in the order. If the council determines that the alleged 
violator has committed a violation of this chapter, the council may make and enter an order 
permanently enjoining further violation. (Ord. O-89-3 § 15, 1988) 
 
8.16.160 Violation—Penalty. 

A. Any person violating the provisions of this chapter shall be subject to a penalty not to exceed 
one thousand dollars. Each day a violation of this chapter continues shall be deemed a separate 
violation. In addition to the above penalties, any condition caused or permitted to exist in violation of 
this chapter shall be deemed to be a public nuisance and the city attorney may, in addition to other 
remedies provided by law, institute injunction, mandamus, abatement or other appropriate legal 
proceedings to temporarily or permanently enjoin or abate such violation. Penalties and other remedies 
may be enforced pursuant to ORS 30.310, 30.315 and 30.410. The penalties and remedies provided in 
this chapter are not exclusive and are in addition to any penalties and remedies available to the city 
under any other ordinance or law. 

B. In addition to any other remedy available to the city to enforce the provisions of this chapter, 
the city may impose a charge or fee, not to exceed one thousand dollars per day upon any person who, 
without complying with the provisions of this chapter, provides service or collects or hauls solid waste or 
recyclable materials over the streets and ways within the city. Collection of the fee may be enforced by 
civil proceedings pursuant to ORS 30.315. (Ord. O-89-3 § 16, 1988) 
 
8.16.170 Franchise fee. 

Effective July 1, 1991, as compensation for the franchise granted to the franchisee for use of the 
streets and ways within the corporate limits of the city, the franchisee shall pay to the city a fee equal to 
three percent of the gross receipts resulting from the solid waste services conducted under the 
franchise. The franchise fee shall be computed on a quarterly basis and paid within thirty days following 
the end of each quarterly calendar year. The franchisee shall maintain an adequate record of gross cash 
receipts resulting from the solid waste services conducted under the franchise. Records shall be open at 
all times for audit by authorized personnel designed by the city administrator. Willful misrepresentation 
of gross cash receipts by the franchisee shall constitute cause for revocation of this franchise pursuant 
to Section 8.16.140 of this chapter. The franchise fee shall be in lieu of any business license or regulatory 
fee or tax, but shall not be in lieu of any ad valorem tax, imposed by the city. (Ord. O-91-9 § 2, 1991: 
Ord. O-91-7 § 2, 1991: Ord. O-89-3 § 17, 1988) 



7 
 

 
Chapter 8.20 COMMERCIAL GARBAGE CONTAINERS 
Sections: 

8.20.010 Standards for approval. 
8.20.020 Special conditions and enforcement. 
8.20.030 Violation—Penalty. 

 
8.20.010 Standards for approval. 

A. All commercial garbage receptacles, and covered containers/drop boxes (one yard to forty 
yards) located within the residential and commercial zones shall be in an enclosed area on the property 
or at the building being served and shall be screened from public view unless otherwise specified in this 
chapter. 

B. The height of the screening shall not exceed six feet. 
C. The screen shall enclose the receptacle on all four sides, with one side being a gate, and shall 

be constructed to be compatible with materials and color of surrounding buildings. 
D. Enclosures must be approved by the collector before construction to ensure access is 

acceptable. 
E. Chain link fences with slats, wood, or brick or any combination will qualify as appropriate 

materials. Other commonly used materials may be approved by the planning commission. 
F. Shrubbery and evergreens will not qualify alone for screening but may be included in addition 

to materials listed in subsection D of this section. (Ord. O-90-9 § 1, 1990; Ord. O-89-14 § 1, 1989)  
 
8.20.020 Special conditions and enforcement. 

A. The homeowner, or property owner, shall assume all responsibility for the safety and 
maintenance of the containers and screens. No additional garbage or refuse may be visible at any time. 

B. No commercial sized container or enclosure, visible from the golf course, shall be located on 
property abutting the golf course. 

  (Ord. O-89-14 § 2 (A—D), 1989) 
 
8.20.030 Violation—Penalty. 

It is a violation not to comply with any of the provisions of this chapter. Each noncompliance will 
be considered a separate violation and each day that a violation exists shall constitute a separate 
violation. The penalty for each violation shall be a fine as required by the city’s schedule of fees and 
penalties as approved through resolution of the city council. (Ord. O-94-1 § 19, 1994: Ord. O-90-9 § 2, 
1990; Ord. O-89-14 § 2 (D), 1989) 

Deleted: C. In order to place a rented 
commercial container temporarily on site, the 
property owner who proposes to rent a 
commercial container or drop box temporarily 
for construction, destruction project or for tree 
removal must notify the city manager to obtain 
permission to place the drop box on site for a 
limited period of time. The city manager shall 
determine if the placement of the container, 
length of use and maintenance of the facility, is 
appropriate. If the city manager approves the 
placement of the drop box/container, the 
property owner must agree to all conditions as 
specified by the city manager prior to placement 
of the container.

Commented [KL1]: This practice has changed 
at the request of the City 


























































